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Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note (Rupees)

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 9  1,884,453,068  1,948,072,161 
Intangible assets 10  836,118  408,566 
Long-term deposits 11  12,776,285  20,026,285 

 1,898,065,471  1,968,507,012 
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock-in-trade 12  1,165,508,058  1,063,391,314 
Stores and Spares  46,579,607  -   
Trade debts-net 13  860,411,242  654,943,026 
Loans and advances-unsecured, considered good 14  70,212,808  53,632,107 
Short-term deposits, prepayments and other receivables 15  265,503,892  80,337,467 
Taxation - net 16  33,316,703  147,323,874 
Short Term Investment 17  10,524,062  -   
Cash and bank balances 18  267,862,572  78,694,417 

 2,719,918,944  2,078,322,205 

TOTAL ASSETS  4,617,984,415  4,046,829,217 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital
       70,000,000 (2022: 70,000,000) ordinary
            shares of Rs.10/- each 19  700,000,000  700,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 19  593,011,500  593,011,500 
Capital reserve 20  173,566,620  173,566,620 
Revenue reserve 20  503,635,441  186,920,456 
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 20  623,040,000  623,040,000 

 1,893,253,561  1,576,538,576 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Diminishing musharika arrangement 21  31,585,665  72,763,157 
Lease liabilities 22  776,392  -   
Deferred taxation - net 23  193,206,958  61,608,317 
Staff Retirement Benefits - Staff Gratuity 24  80,878,191  61,936,775 
Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 25  59,504,493  61,725,756 

 365,951,699  258,034,005 
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 26  1,920,245,161  1,543,463,545 
Short-term borrowings - secured 27  213,821,187  396,653,938 
Accrued mark-up 28  6,696,989  11,220,483 
Unclaimed dividend  550,336  735,324 
Unpaid dividend  302,875  -   
Current portion of liabilities 21,22 & 25  217,162,607  260,183,347 

 2,358,779,155  2,212,256,636 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 29

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  4,617,984,415  4,046,829,217 

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022

Note (Rupees)

Sales - net 30  5,505,462,439  4,174,142,183 

Cost of sales 31  (4,194,009,701)  (3,563,376,080)

Gross profit  1,311,452,738  610,766,103 

Administrative expenses 32  (200,259,269)  (139,397,353)

Marketing and selling expenses 33  (101,646,032)  (69,243,641)

Finance costs 34  (133,742,264)  (93,909,807)

Other operating expenses 35  (254,991,429)  (121,394,929)

Impairment loss on trade debts 13.1  (35,115,407)  (3,256,223)

Other income 36  114,966,850  79,074,644 

Profit before taxation  700,665,187  262,638,794 

Taxation 37  (321,451,673)  (78,390,417)

Profit after taxation  379,213,514  184,248,377 

Earning per share - basic and diluted 38  6.39  3.11 

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022

Note (Rupees)

Profit after taxation  379,213,514  184,248,377 

Other comprehensive income 

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss-net of tax: 

Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plan 24.2  (5,241,610)  (3,903,059)

Tax effect  2,044,228  1,131,887 

 (3,197,382)  (2,771,172)

Total comprehensive income for the year - net of tax  376,016,132  181,477,205 

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Balance as at July 01, 2021         593,011,500         173,566,620         623,040,000            5,443,251           802,049,871         1,395,061,371 

Profit after tax                         -                           -                           -           184,248,377           184,248,377            184,248,377 

Other comprehensive income for the

 year - net of tax                         -                           -                           -             (2,771,172)              (2,771,172)              (2,771,172)

Total comprehensive income for the

year - net of tax -                      -                                              -           181,477,205           181,477,205            181,477,205 

Balance as at June 30, 2022         593,011,500         173,566,620         623,040,000         186,920,456           983,527,076         1,576,538,576 

Balance as at July 01, 2022         593,011,500         173,566,620         623,040,000         186,920,456           983,527,076         1,576,538,576 

Profit after tax                         -                           -                           -           379,213,514           379,213,514            379,213,514 

Other comprehensive loss for the

year - net of tax                         -                           -                           -             (3,197,382)              (3,197,382)              (3,197,382)

        376,016,132           376,016,132            376,016,132 

Transaction with owners:

Final Cash Dividend for the year ended             (59,301,147)            (59,301,147)            (59,301,147)

30 June, 2022 at the rate of Rs. 1 per share

Balance as at June 30, 2023         593,011,500         173,566,620         623,040,000         503,635,441        1,300,242,061         1,893,253,561 

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Revenue 

reserves - 

unappropriated 

profit / (loss)

------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------------

Issued, 

subscribed and 

paid - up capital 

Capital reserve - 

share premium
Total reserves

Surplus on 

revaluation of 

property, plant 

and equipment

Total equity

Revenue 

reserves
Total

Reserves

Capital reserves

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022

Note (Rupees)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 41  650,565,986  524,219,196 

Long term deposit received/(paid)  7,250,000  (4,930,800)

Income tax - net paid  (110,292,696)  (76,333,537)

Gratuity paid 24.2  (9,773,238)  (6,233,129)

Finance costs paid  (138,265,760)  (90,427,304)

 (251,081,694)  (177,924,770)

Net cash generated from operating activities  399,484,291  346,294,426 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed assets expenditure  (67,194,203)  (174,065,856)

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets  12,050,510  700,000 

Investment in Term Deposit Receipts  (10,524,062)  -   

Additions in intangibles  (555,556)  -   

Net cash used in investing activities  (66,223,311)  (173,365,856)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment from diminishing musharika arrangement  (84,334,609)  (89,814,521)

Payment of lease liabilities  (574,958)  (20,106,733)

Dividend paid  (59,183,258)  -   

Net cash used in financing activities  (144,092,825)  (109,921,254)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  189,168,155  63,007,316 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  78,694,417  15,687,101 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 48  267,862,572  78,694,417 

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
     

1.1 Macpac Films Limited (the Company) was incorporated on August 19, 1993, in Pakistan as a limited 

liability company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 [now Companies act, 2017 (the 

Act)] and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered  office of the Company is 

situated at Plot no. 21, Maqboolabad, Jinnah Cooperative Housing Society, (J.C.H.S), Tipu Sultan 

Road, Karachi. The principal activity of the Company is to manufacture, produce, buy and sell plastic 

packaging films. 

            

2 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESS OF BUSINESS UNIT/PLANT IS AS FOLLOWS: 
         

Location and address Purpose

Plot # 21, Maqboolabad, Jinnah Cooperative Housing Society, 

Tipu Sultan Road, Karachi. Head Office

Plot # Ez/1/P-10 East Industrial Zone, Karachi Production Plant

Room # 21, Second floor, Lahore Centre, Gulberg North Sales Office

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE         

    

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan comprise:      

            

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS standards) issued by the International 

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;   

         

-  Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under the Companies Act 2017; and    

         

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.    

        

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 

requirements of IFRS standards or IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 

Act, 2017 have been followed.          

 

4 BASIS OF PREPARATION          

  
4.1 Basis Of Measurement          

  

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the 

Company’s liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present 

value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets, leasehold land stated at its fair 

values determined by an independent valuer.        

 

4.2 Functional and presentation currency        

     

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company’s functional 

currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.     
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

5 New or Amendments / Interpretations to Existing Standards,     

        

 There are new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods 

beginning 1 July 2023 that are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on 

the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not stated in these financial statements.

5.1 Standards, amendments and improvements to the approved accounting standards that are 

not yet effective         

         

 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the 

Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting 

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2023: 

• Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 in January 2020) apply 

retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 (as deferred vide 

amendments to IAS 1 in October 2022) with earlier application permitted. These amendments 

in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. 

Convertible debt may need to be reclassified as ‘current’. The standard also amends the aspect 

of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the 

end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. An entity’s expectation and discretion at the reporting date to refinance 

or to reschedule payments on a long-term basis are no longer relevant for the classification of 

a liability as current or non-current. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in 

accordance with IAS 8.  

        

• Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (amendment to IAS 1 in October 2022) aims to improve 

the information an entity provides when its right to defer settlement of a liability for at least 

twelve months is subject to compliance with conditions. The amendment is also intended to 

address concerns about classifying such a liability as current or non-current. Only covenants 

with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification 

of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants with which the company must comply after 

the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect a liability’s classification at that date. 

However, when non-current liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies will now need 

to disclose information to help users understand the risk that those liabilities could become 

repayable within 12 months after the reporting date. The amendments apply retrospectively for 

annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with earlier application permitted. 

These amendments also specify the transition requirements for companies that may have early-

adopted the previously issued but not yet effective 2020 amendments to IAS 1 (as referred 

above).  

         

• Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) – the 

Board has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies 

and to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to 

IAS 1 include: 

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant 

accounting policies;       

        

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or 

conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and  
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or 

conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements. 

• The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional 

examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments 

are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier 

application permitted. 

• Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) introduce a new definition for 

accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that 

are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between 

accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that an entity develops an accounting 

estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective 

for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will 

apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 

occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 

applies the amendments. 

        

• Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments 

to IAS 12) narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not 

apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, 

companies will need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary 

differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases 

and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be 

recognized from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative 

effect recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that 

date. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2023 with earlier application permitted.        

 

• Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) adds 

subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the 

requirements to be accounted for as a sale. The amendment confirms that on initial recognition, 

the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments when it measures a lease liability arising 

from a sale-and-leaseback transaction. After initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the 

general requirements for subsequent accounting of the lease liability such that it recognizes no 

gain or loss relating to the right of use it retains. A seller-lessee may adopt different approaches 

that satisfy the new requirements on subsequent measurement. The amendments are effective 

for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with earlier application 

permitted. Under IAS 8, a seller-lessee will need to apply the amendments retrospectively to 

sale-and-leaseback transactions entered into or after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 

and will need to identify and re-examine sale-and-leaseback transactions entered into since 

implementation of IFRS 16 in 2019, and potentially restate those that included variable lease 

payments. If an entity (a seller-lessee) applies the amendments arising from Lease Liability in a 

Sale and Leaseback for an earlier period, the entity shall disclose that fact.    

      

• Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 

(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) – The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of 

control of business or assets.  The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent 

transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that 

are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the 

completion of a broader review.         
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

• Supplier Finance Arrangements (amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7) introduce two new disclosure 

objectives for a company to provide information about its supplier finance arrangements that 

would enable users (investors) to assess the effects of these arrangements on the company’s 

liabilities and cash flows, and the company’s exposure to liquidity risk. Under the amendments, 

companies also need to disclose the type and effect of non-cash changes in the carrying amounts 

of the financial liabilities that are part of a supplier finance arrangement. The amendments also 

add supplier finance arrangements as an example to the existing disclosure requirements in 

IFRS 7 on factors a company might consider when providing specific quantitative liquidity risk 

disclosures about its financial liabilities. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on 

or after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted. However, some relief from providing 

certain information in the year of initial application is available.

         

• International Tax Reform – Pillar Two Model Rules (amendments to IAS 12 ) introduce  following 

new disclosure requirements: 

- Once tax law is enacted but before top-up tax is effective: 

   

 Disclose information that is known or can be reasonably estimated and that helps users of its 

financial statements to understand its exposure to Pillar Two income taxes at the reporting 

date. If information is not known or cannot be reasonably estimated at the reporting date, 

then a company discloses a statement to that effect and information about its progress in 

assessing the Pillar Two exposure.

   

- After top-up tax is effective: disclose current tax expense related to top-up tax. 

6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES     

     

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 

the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgments 

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are 

continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations 

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods 

affected.

           

 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following 

estimates and judgments which are significant to these financial statements:

(a)  determining the impairment, residual values, revaluation of land, useful lives, method of depreciation 

of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (notes 7.1, 9.1 & 10.1);

(b)  provision for expected credit loss of certain financial assets (note 7.10 & 13); 

(c)  recognition of staff retirement benefits (note 7.9 & 24);

(d)  recognition of taxation and deferred tax (notes 7.6, 16 & 23); 

(e)  estimation of net realizable value of stock in trade (note 7.4 & 12);

(f)  contingencies (note 7.20 & 29.1). 

(g)  leases (note 7.18 & 22).     

(h) provisions (note 7.15)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES      

    
7.1 Property, plant and equipment         

  

 Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any, except for leasehold land, which is stated at revalued amounts less accumulated 

impairment losses, if any.

         

 Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using the reducing balance method at the rates 

specified in note 9 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions are charged from the month 

the assets are available for use while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is 

derecognized. 

         

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. 

Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. 

         

 Assets residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted 

prospectively, if appropriate at each reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down 

immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount  is greater than its estimated 

recoverable amount.   

          

 An item of operating fixed assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefit 

are expected to arise from continued use of asset. Gain or losses on disposal or retirement of an 

asset represent the difference between the sale proceed and the carrying amount is charged to 

statement of profit or loss.  

          

 Capital work-in progress         

          

 Capital work-in progress is stated at cost less impairment in value, if any. It consists of expenditure 

incurred and advances made in respect of fixed assets in the course of their erection, acquisition and 

installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of operating fixed assets or intangible 

assets when they are available for use.         

 

7.2 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment      

     

 Property, plant and equipment are measured at  fair value less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses recognised after the date of revaluation. Valuations are performed 

with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ 

materially from its fair value.  

          

 A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant 

and equipment in equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset 

previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. A 

revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets 

an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment. 

          

 Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to 

retained earnings.         
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

7.3 Intangible assets         

          

 Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Costs that are directly associated 

with identifiable software products controlled by the Company and have probable economic benefit 

beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if 

any. 

         

 Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which the assets are put to use while no 

amortization is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.    

       

 Assets residual values, useful lives and method of amortization are reviewed and adjusted 

prospectively, if appropriate at each reporting date.

          

7.4 Stock-in-trade         

          

 These are valued at the lower of net realizable value (NRV) or cost of the stock-in-trade which is 

determined using weighted average cost method.       

   

 Weighted average cost in relation to work in process and finished goods constitute average 

manufacturing cost including direct material, labour and proportionate share of related direct 

overheads.      

          

 NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.     

     

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon 

up to the reporting date.          

 

 Scraps are valued at estimated realisable value.       

    

7.5 Stores and Spares         
          

 These are valued at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at invoice value 

plus other charges incurred thereon till the reporting date. Provision for obsolete and slow moving 

stores, spare parts and loose tools is determined based on management’s estimate regarding their 

future usability. 

          

7.6 Taxation         

          

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in the 

other comprehensive income or in equity, in which case it is recognized in the other comprehensive 

income or equity respectively. 

          

 Current         

          

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams under final tax regime 

at the applicable tax rates and remaining income streams chargeable at current rate of taxation 

under the normal tax regime after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any. 

Provision of current tax is determined using the tax rate enacted at the reporting date. 
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 Deferred         

          

 Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary 

difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 

and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax recognized is based on the 

expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using 

the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.      

     

 The Company recognizes a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits in 

the foreseeable future will be available against which the assets can be utilized. Deferred tax assets 

are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

          

7.7 Cash and cash equivalents         

          

 These are carried at cost. Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and 

deposit accounts held with banks, which are subject to insignificant risk of change.    

       

7.8 Impairment of non-financial assets         

  

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset are 

reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 

such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount 

of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to 

sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and 

the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested 

individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 

continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets 

(“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”).        

          

 The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that 

a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which 

the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or 

its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement 

of profit or loss. 

          

 Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 

that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 

change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed 

only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 

would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been 

recognized. 

          

7.9 Staff retirement benefits         

          
 Defined benefit plan - staff gratuity scheme        

  

 The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity scheme for management and  non-management 

staff  which are unfunded. The gratuity plans are final salary plans. The contributions to the unfunded 

gratuity scheme are made in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The Company 

recognizes expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.     
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 An actuarial valuation of defined benefit scheme  is conducted every year. The valuation uses the 

Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which 

they occur in other comprehensive income.        

  

 All past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs 

and when the Company has recognized related restructuring or termination benefits. 

      

7.10 Financial instruments         

          

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity.  

7.10.1 Financial assets          

          
a)  Initial recognition and measurement         

   

 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, 

fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.  

         

 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual 

cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception 

of trade receivables, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the 

case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts are 

measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.     

      

 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through 

OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on 

the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed 

at an instrument level. The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how 

it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines 

whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or 

both.  

          

 Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established 

by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade 

date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.    

       

b)  Subsequent measurement         

          

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments); 

ii) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses 

(debt instruments);       

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains 

and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments); and

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.      
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i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)      

   

 The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are 

met:  

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial 

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

        

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.   

     

     

 Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) 

method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or 

loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.      

  

ii)  Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)    

     

 The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions 

are met: 

-   The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to 

collect contractual cash flows and selling; and       

   

-  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

       

 For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and 

impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the 

same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes 

are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value 

change recognised in OCI is recycled to statement of profit or loss. 

       

 The Company does not have any debt instruments at fair value through OCI investments during the 

current and last year and as of reporting date.

iii)  Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)   

     

 Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity 

instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 

32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined 

on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

        

 Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to statement of profit or loss. Dividends 

are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been 

established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost 

of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity 

instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.  

       

 The Company does not have any equity instruments at fair value through OCI investments during 

the current and last year and as of reporting date.       
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iv)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial 

assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets 

mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading 

if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including 

separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated 

as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of 

principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of 

the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised 

cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair 

value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an 

accounting mismatch.   

        

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at 

fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

c)  Derecognition        

         

 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) 

when: 

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or  

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed 

an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 

a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all 

the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  but has transferred control of the asset.

 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 

a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards 

of ownership. 

 

 When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, 

nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to 

the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated 

liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 

rights and obligations that the Company has retained.      

   

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 

the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that 

the Company could be required to repay.
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d)  Impairment of financial assets        

         

 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at 

fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows 

due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, 

discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will 

include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to 

the contractual terms. 

         

 For trade debts and other receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating 

ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss 

allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision 

matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors 

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.        

    

7.10.2 Financial liabilities 

a)  Initial recognition and measurement        

 

 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 

effective hedge, as appropriate.  

         

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.       

   

 The Company’s financial liabilities include long term financing, short term borrowings, due to related 

parties, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. 

i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss      

    

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 

trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 

profit or loss.  

       

 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or 

loss.       

        

 Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 

designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. 

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or 

loss.

     

ii)  Loans and borrowings        

        

 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss 

when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as 

finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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b)  Derecognition         

         

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 

or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 

of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 

profit or loss. 

7.10.3 Offsetting of financial instruments  

   

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 

of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously.

7.11 Short Term Investment 

           

 Investments in Pakistan Term Deposit Receipts are classified at amortized cost and are initially 

measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are included in the 

carrying amount. 

    

7.12 Trade Debts          

           

 These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and 

measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no 

reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the 

calculation of expected credit loss. 

           

7.13 Trade and other payables 

           

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 

of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously. 

           

7.14 Revenue recognition          

           

 The Company is in the business of manufacturing packing products. The revenue is recognized 

on delivery of the products to the customers. The Company has generally concluded that it is the 

principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before 

transferring them to the customer.         

   

 The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate 

performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In 

determining the transaction price for the rendering of services, the Company considers the effects 

of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non cash consideration, 

and consideration payable to the customer (if any).       
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 Performance obligations          

  

 Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarized below:   

         

 The performance obligation is satisfied when the product is delivered to the customer.   

         

 Interest on bank deposits are recognized on effective interest rate basis.    

         

 Miscellaneous income, if any, is recognised on an accrual basis.     

     

 Contract liabilities          

           

 A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) 

from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are 

recognised as revenue when the Company satisfies the performance obligation under the contract 

(i.e., transfers control of the related goods to the customer).      

      

7.15 Provisions          

           

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has present legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The 

amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of reporting date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 

adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.        

    

7.16 Foreign currency transactions         

   

 Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupees at the rates prevailing on 

the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are reported using the 

exchange rate as of the reporting date, except where forward exchange purchases have been made 

for payment of liabilities, in that case the contracted rates are applied. Exchange gains and losses 

on transactions are included in statement of profit or loss in the year in which it occurs.  

         

7.17 Dividends          
           

 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in 

which the dividends are declared / approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting 

period but before the financial statement are authorized for issue, disclosure is made in the financial 

statements.           

 

7.18 Leases           

           

 The Company assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains a lease. That is, if the 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange 

for consideration. The Company acts as a lessee and applies a single recognition and measurement 

approach for all the leases except for short-term leases of 12 months or less and leases of low value 

assets (if any). The Company recognises lease liability to make lease payments and right-of-use 

assets (ROU assets) representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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i)  Right-of-use assets (ROU assets)         

 The Company recognises ROU assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 

underlying asset is available for use). ROU assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The 

cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred (if 

any), and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less lease incentives received 

(if any). Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the 

end of the lease term, the recognised ROU assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 

shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. ROU assets are subject to impairment.  

        

ii)  Lease liabilities         

         

 At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the 

present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 

payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable 

lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual 

value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option (if any) 

reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the 

lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease 

payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in 

which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

           

 In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing 

rate at the lease commencement date. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities 

is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, 

the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease 

term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase 

the underlying asset.          

 The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any 

periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any 

periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. 

         

 The Company has the option, under its lease arrangements to lease the assets for additional terms.

  The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the 

option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to 

exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if 

there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability 

to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy). Any change 

is accounted for change in estimate and applied prospectively with corresponding change in ROU 

assets and lease liabilities. 

        

iii)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets       
   

 The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of assets 

(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do 

not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption 

to leases of assets that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and 

leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
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7.19 Earnings per share         

          

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for the shareholders. Basic EPS 

is calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by 

the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.    

        

 Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and 

post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that 

would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.  

    

7.20 Contingent liabilities         

          

 A contingent liabilities is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past 

events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, at one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal 

or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation can 

not be measured with sufficient reliability.         

   

8 DETAILS OF RELATED PARTIES OF THE COMPANY       

    

 Details of related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions with or has arrangements 

/ agreements in place during the year are as follows:

       

Name of related party Basis of relationship

Hilal Foods (Private) Limited Common Directorship

Kings Foods (Private) Limited Common Directorship

Shalimar Foods Products Common Directorship

Toyo Packaging (Private) Limited Common Directorship

Mac Business Solution (Private) Limited Common Directorship

TGA Sustainability (Private) Limited Common Directorship

Mac Properties (Private) Limited Common Directorship

Mr. Najm ul Hassan (Chief Executive Officer) Key management personnel

Mr. Ehtesham Maqbool Elahi (Executive Director) Key management personnel

Mr. Habib Elahi  (Director Operations) Key management personnel

Mr. Faisal Panawala  (CFO) Key management personnel

Ms. Ume-Farwa  (Head of Internal Audit) Key management personnel
       

2023 2022

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note (Rupees)

Operating fixed assets 9.1  1,862,853,575  1,837,188,145 

Right-of-use assets 9.6  1,360,691  839,412 

Capital work-in-progress 9.8  20,238,802  110,044,604 

 1,884,453,068  1,948,072,161 



  |  MACPAC Annual Report 202367

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

9
.1

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 f

ix
e
d

  
a
s
s
e
ts

N
e
t 

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 b

a
s
is

O
p
e
n
in

g
 n

e
t 

b
o
o
k
 v

a
lu

e
 (

N
B

V
)

a
s
 a

t 
J
u
ly

 0
1
, 

2
0
2
2

6
4
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
4
9
,4

0
9
,4

4
4

  
  

  
  

 
8
2
5
,2

9
5
,7

6
2

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,0

2
1
,8

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,2

7
5
,3

8
5

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,9

3
2
,8

1
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
4
7
,1

6
2
,4

4
2

  
  

  
  

 
1
1
,4

1
0
,9

3
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,4

6
4
,9

0
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
2
,2

1
4
,6

6
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,8

3
7
,1

8
8
,1

4
5

  
  

  
  

 

A
d
d
it
io

n
s
/ 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rs
 (

a
t 

c
o
s
t)

 *
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
2
,6

5
1
,9

5
8

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
1
2
,0

3
2
,6

7
3

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,3

0
8
,6

8
5

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,6

9
0
,7

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,6

8
1
,8

6
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
,0

6
5
,3

7
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,1

8
9
,6

0
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
,4

9
4
,9

3
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
4
,0

3
5
,0

8
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
5
7
,1

5
0
,9

6
3

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 R
O

U
 a

s
s
e
ts

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
is

p
o
s
a
ls

 (
a
t 

N
B

V
) 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(6
,1

5
4
,3

1
9
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(6

,1
5
4
,3

1
9
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

D
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 (

N
o
te

 9
.4

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(7
,7

9
0
,7

1
6
)

  
  

  
  

  
 

(8
8
,8

2
5
,0

9
6
)

  
  

  
  

  
 

(5
7
9
,6

9
5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

,0
0
1
,8

5
3
)

  
  

  
  

  
(7

7
6
,5

8
6
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
4
,9

5
3
,3

9
1
)

  
  

  
  

 
(1

,2
2
1
,9

1
5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(8
4
3
,5

7
0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(9
,3

3
8
,3

9
2
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

2
5
,3

3
1
,2

1
4
)

  
  

  
  

  

N
e
t 

b
o

o
k
 v

a
lu

e
 (

N
B

V
)

a
s
 a

t 
J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
3

6
4
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
5
4
,2

7
0
,6

8
6

  
  

  
  

 
8
4
8
,5

0
3
,3

3
9

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,7

5
0
,7

9
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,9

6
4
,3

0
2

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0
,8

3
8
,0

9
7

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
3
6
,2

7
4
,4

3
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
2
,3

7
8
,6

2
3

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,1

1
6
,2

7
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
0
,7

5
7
,0

3
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,8

6
2
,8

5
3
,5

7
5

  
  

  
  

 

G
ro

s
s
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 b

a
s
is

C
o
s
t 

 /
 R

e
v
a
lu

e
d
 a

m
o
u
n
t

6
4
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
2
2
0
,8

5
2
,1

9
1

  
  

  
  

 
1
,9

7
9
,4

7
6
,5

6
9

  
  

  
  

1
1
,9

1
0
,5

5
1

  
  

  
  

 
1
2
,8

7
7
,6

3
1

  
  

  
  

 
1
5
,7

3
9
,3

1
6

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
7
3
,9

1
3
,4

7
5

  
  

  
  

 
2
1
,0

4
3
,5

3
8

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0
,2

9
0
,9

6
6

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
4
,0

7
5
,8

8
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
,1

8
0
,1

8
0
,1

2
0

  
  

  
  

 

A
c
c
u
m

u
la

te
d
 d

e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(6

6
,5

8
1
,5

0
5
)

  
  

  
  

 
(1

,1
3
0
,9

7
3
,2

3
0
)

  
  

  
 

(6
,1

5
9
,7

6
1
)

  
  

  
  

  
(2

,9
1
3
,3

2
9
)

  
  

  
  

  
(4

,9
0
1
,2

1
9
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
7
,6

3
9
,0

4
5
)

  
  

  
  

 
(8

,6
6
4
,9

1
5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(6
,1

7
4
,6

9
1
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(5
3
,3

1
8
,8

5
0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,3

1
7
,3

2
6
,5

4
5
)

  
  

  
 

N
e
t 

b
o

o
k
 v

a
lu

e
 (

N
B

V
)

a
s
 a

t 
J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
3

6
4
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
5
4
,2

7
0
,6

8
6

  
  

  
  

 
8
4
8
,5

0
3
,3

3
9

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,7

5
0
,7

9
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,9

6
4
,3

0
2

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0
,8

3
8
,0

9
7

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
3
6
,2

7
4
,4

3
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
2
,3

7
8
,6

2
3

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,1

1
6
,2

7
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
0
,7

5
7
,0

3
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,8

6
2
,8

5
3
,5

7
5

  
  

  
  

 

R
a
te

 o
f 

d
e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
5
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

2
5
%

2
0
%

* 
A

d
d
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

 l
a
n
d
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n
d
 m

a
c
h
in

e
ry

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

-i
n
-p

ro
g
re

s
s
.

L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

 l
a
n

d
B

u
il

d
in

g
s
 o

n
 

le
a
s
e
h

o
ld

 l
a
n

d

P
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

m
a
c
h

in
e
ry

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 

fi
x
tu

re
s

E
le

c
tr

ic
 

in
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e
fr

ig
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

a
ir

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
in

g
 

G
e
n

e
ra

to
rs

O
ff

ic
e
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
C

o
m

p
u

te
rs

M
o

to
r 

v
e
h

ic
le

s
T

o
ta

l

N
e
t 

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 b

a
s
is

O
p
e
n
in

g
 n

e
t 

b
o
o
k
 v

a
lu

e
 (

N
B

V
)

a
s
 a

t 
J
u
ly

 0
1
, 

2
0
2
1

6
4
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
5
3
,2

4
6
,2

3
3

  
  

  
  

 
8
3
2
,3

0
3
,2

1
9

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,5

5
7
,8

9
5

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,9

7
0
,2

8
6

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,7

7
2
,4

1
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
6
8
,7

3
7
,2

0
8

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,8

7
9
,2

5
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,7

7
7
,1

4
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
4
,0

9
1
,2

9
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,7

5
4
,3

3
4
,9

6
0

  
  

  
  

 

A
d
d
it
io

n
s
/ 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rs
 (

a
t 

c
o
s
t)

*
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,6

1
8
,0

8
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
0
,0

3
4
,6

0
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
3
0
,6

1
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3
,9

1
8
,1

0
8

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,6

8
3
,9

7
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,6

6
7
,3

7
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,2

6
5
,3

8
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
1
,0

0
2
,2

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
5
,1

2
0
,4

0
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 R
O

U
 a

s
s
e
ts

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
7
,5

5
1
,2

2
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
5
,0

9
9
,7

3
2

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,6

9
3
,5

2
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
7
,3

4
4
,4

7
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
is

p
o
s
a
ls

 (
a
t 

N
B

V
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
6
,5

2
5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

1
5
,0

6
5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

5
1
,5

9
0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

D
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 (

N
o
te

 9
.4

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(7
,4

5
4
,8

7
1
)

  
  

  
  

  
 

(8
4
,5

9
3
,2

8
6
)

  
  

  
  

  
 

(4
6
6
,7

1
1
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(6

1
3
,0

0
9
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(5

2
3
,5

8
5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(6
,6

7
4
,4

9
8
)

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
,0

9
9
,1

8
1
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(5
7
7
,6

2
4
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(7
,4

5
7
,3

4
4
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

0
9
,4

6
0
,1

0
8
)

  
  

  
  

  

N
e
t 

b
o

o
k
 v

a
lu

e
 (

N
B

V
)

a
s
 a

t 
J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
2

6
4
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
4
9
,4

0
9
,4

4
4

  
  

  
  

 
8
2
5
,2

9
5
,7

6
2

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,0

2
1
,8

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,2

7
5
,3

8
5

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,9

3
2
,8

1
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
4
7
,1

6
2
,4

4
2

  
  

  
  

 
1
1
,4

1
0
,9

3
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,4

6
4
,9

0
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
2
,2

1
4
,6

6
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,8

3
7
,1

8
8
,1

4
5

  
  

  
  

 

G
ro

s
s
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 b

a
s
is

C
o
s
t 

6
4
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
2
0
8
,2

0
0
,2

3
3

  
  

  
  

 
1
,8

6
7
,4

4
3
,8

9
5

  
  

  
  

1
0
,6

0
1
,8

6
6

  
  

  
  

 
1
0
,1

8
6
,8

6
1

  
  

  
  

 
1
0
,0

5
7
,4

4
6

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
6
9
,8

4
8
,0

9
6

  
  

  
  

 
1
8
,8

5
3
,9

3
1

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
,7

9
6
,0

2
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
0
,4

9
2
,0

8
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
,0

3
3
,4

8
0
,4

4
0

  
  

  
  

 

A
c
c
u
m

u
la

te
d
 d

e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(5

8
,7

9
0
,7

8
9
)

  
  

  
  

 
(1

,0
4
2
,1

4
8
,1

3
4
)

  
  

  
 

(5
,5

8
0
,0

6
6
)

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,9
1
1
,4

7
6
)

  
  

  
  

  
(4

,1
2
4
,6

3
3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
2
,6

8
5
,6

5
4
)

  
  

  
  

 
(7

,4
4
3
,0

0
2
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(5
,3

3
1
,1

2
1
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
8
,2

7
7
,4

2
3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,1

9
6
,2

9
2
,2

9
5
)

  
  

  
 

N
e
t 

b
o

o
k
 v

a
lu

e
 (

N
B

V
)

a
s
 a

t 
J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
2
2

6
4
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
4
9
,4

0
9
,4

4
4

  
  

  
  

 
8
2
5
,2

9
5
,7

6
1

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,0

2
1
,8

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,2

7
5
,3

8
5

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,9

3
2
,8

1
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
4
7
,1

6
2
,4

4
2

  
  

  
  

 
1
1
,4

1
0
,9

2
9

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,4

6
4
,9

0
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
2
,2

1
4
,6

6
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,8

3
7
,1

8
8
,1

4
5

  
  

  
  

 

R
a
te

 o
f 

d
e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
5
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

1
0
%

2
5
%

2
0
%

* 
A

d
d
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

 l
a
n
d
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n
d
 m

a
c
h
in

e
ry

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

-i
n
-p

ro
g
re

s
s
.

C
o

m
p

u
te

rs
M

o
to

r 
v
e
h

ic
le

s
T

o
ta

l
L

e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

 l
a
n

d

O
W

N
E

D

O
W

N
E

D

R
e
fr

ig
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

a
ir

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
in

g
 

G
e
n

e
ra

to
rs

O
ff

ic
e
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
B

u
il

d
in

g
s
 o

n
 

le
a
s
e
h

o
ld

 l
a
n

d

P
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

m
a
c
h

in
e
ry

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 

fi
x
tu

re
s

E
le

c
tr

ic
 

in
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n

s
 

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
- 

(R
u

p
e
e
s
) 

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
- 

(R
u

p
e
e
s
) 

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-



  |  MACPAC Annual Report 202368

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

9.2 The Company had revalued its leasehold land using the market comparable method during prior 

year. The valuations had been performed by the valuer and are based on proprietary databases 

of prices of transactions for properties of similar nature, location and condition. As at the date of 

revaluation, the leasehold land’s fair values are based on valuations performed by Sipra & Company 

(Pvt) Ltd., an accredited independent valuer certified by State Bank of Pakistan  who has valuation 

experience for similar assets. A net gain from the revaluation of the leasehold land of Rs. 623 million 

was recognised in OCI in year 2020. Fair value measurement disclosures for the revalued leasehold 

land are provided in note 43.         

 

 Had there been no revaluation, the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment would be as 

follows: 

    

2023 2022

(Rupees)

Leasehold land  16,960,000  16,960,000 

        

9.2.1 Forced sales value of leasehold land is Rs. 512 million.

 

9.3  Details of operating  fixed assets disposed of:

    

Vehicles
Cost

Accumulated 

depreciation

Net book 

value

Sale

proceed
Gain / (loss) Mode of

disposal

Particulars of 

buyer

Relationship 

with buyer
------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------

Honda City  1,570,370  1,159,999  410,371  1,440,510  1,030,139 By Negotiation Zaffar Abbas Third Party

Honda Civic  2,435,700  1,588,939  846,761  3,150,000  2,303,239 By Negotiation Ali Third Party

SUZUKI Swift  1,175,214  775,914  399,300  1,260,000  860,700 As per policy Mehreen Shah Employee

KIA Sportage  5,270,000  772,113  4,497,887  6,200,000  1,702,113 By Negotiation Faisal Shahid Third Party

 10,451,284  4,296,965  6,154,319  12,050,510  5,896,191 

   

2023 2022

9.4 Allocation of depreciation expense Note (Rupees)

Cost of sales 31  118,763,216  106,278,198 

Administrative expenses 32  5,381,368  2,224,980 

Marketing and selling expenses 33  1,186,630  956,930 

 125,331,214  109,460,108 

 

9.5 The details of immovable assets (i.e. land and building) of the Company as at June 30, 2023 are as 

follows:

  

Location Address Usage  Covered Area  

(sq. ft)

Karachi Plot # Ez/1/P-10 East Industrial Zone, Karachi Production facility  697,017 
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9.6 Right-of-use assets         

          

 The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year are as 

follows: 

  

 Office
Premises

 Total 

Note (Rupees)

As at July 1, 2022      839,412  839,412 

Additions  1,937,226  1,937,226 

Adjustment  (839,412)  (839,412)

Depreciation expense 22.2  (576,535)  (576,535)

As at June 30, 2023  1,360,691  1,360,691 

As at June 30, 2022  839,412  839,412 

Rate of depreciation 33%

2023 2022

9.7 Allocation of depreciation expense Note (Rupees)

Cost of sales 31  -    11,046,216 

Marketing and selling expenses 33  576,535  537,898 

 576,535  11,584,114 

   

9.8 Capital work-in-progress

Balance Balance 

as at 01 as at 30 

July 2022 Additions Transfers June 2023

----------------- (Rupees) -----------------

Building and civil works  17,234,322  5,051,796  (15,787,795)  6,498,323 

Plant and machinery  91,941,576  53,407,555  (131,608,652)  13,740,479 

Generators  868,706  -    (868,706)  -   

 110,044,604  58,459,351  (148,265,153)  20,238,802 

Balance Balance 

as at 01 as at 30 

July 2021 Additions Transfers June 2022

----------------- (Rupees) -----------------

Building and civil works  12,700,921  32,978,935  (28,445,534)  17,234,322 

Plant and machinery  35,356,123  103,476,585  (46,891,132)  91,941,576 

Generators  868,706  -    -    868,706 

 48,925,750  136,455,520  (75,336,666)  110,044,604 
  



  |  MACPAC Annual Report 202370

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note (Rupees)

Computer software 10.1  836,118  408,566 

10.1 Computer software

Net carrying value basis

Net carrying value as on July 01  408,566  510,708 

Additions  555,556  -   

Amortization 10.2  (128,004)  (102,142)

Net carrying value as at June 30  836,118  408,566 

Gross carrying value basis

Cost  1,985,738  1,985,738 

Additions  555,556  -   

Accumulated amortization  (1,705,176)  (1,577,172)

Net carrying value as at June 30  836,118  408,566 

  

10.2 Amortization charge of 20% per annum has been allocated to administrative expenses (Note 32).

 

2023 2022

11 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS Note (Rupees)

Security deposits 

Margin against bank guarantee 11.1  -    7,250,200 

Other deposits  12,776,285  12,776,085 

 12,776,285  20,026,285 

 

11.1 Represents cash margin against guarantee issued by Faysal Bank Limited in favour of Sui Southern Gas 

Company Limited.

 

2023 2022

12 STOCK-IN-TRADE Note (Rupees)

Raw material:

In hand 12.1,12.2 & 31  548,928,265  336,010,436 

In transit  181,282,518  306,120,042 

In bonded warehouse  226,617,915  322,016,789 

 956,828,698  964,147,267 

Work in process 31  133,110,261  88,488,789 

Finished goods 31  75,569,099  10,755,258 

 208,679,360  99,244,047 

 1,165,508,058  1,063,391,314 
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12.1 This includes raw material provided by third parties for toll manufacturing amounting to Rs. 430 

million (2022: Rs. 254 million).          

 

12.2 This includes packing material amounting to Rs. 9.8 million (2022: Rs. 7.1 million).  

2023 2022

13 TRADE DEBTS-NET Note (Rupees)

Considered good

 - Related parties 13.2 & 13.3  265,346,090  148,384,271 

 - Other than related parties  595,065,152  506,558,755 

 860,411,242  654,943,026 

Considered doubtful  68,448,258  33,332,851 

13.4  928,859,500  688,275,877 

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) 13.1  (68,448,258)  (33,332,851)

 860,411,242  654,943,026 

13.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance as at 1 July  33,332,851  30,076,628 

Impairment loss on trade debts  35,115,407  3,256,223 

Balance as at 30 June  68,448,258  33,332,851 

13.2 Represents balances due from related parties which are as follows:

Description

Hilal Foods (Private) Limited  16,892,289  1,230,443 

Kings Foods (Private) Limited  -    632,650 

Shalimar Foods Products  1,487,346  1,994,231 

Toyo Packaging (Private) Limited  104,288,723  144,526,947 

Mac Business Solution (Private) Limited  29,693,387  -   

TGA Sustainability (Private) Limited  112,984,345  -   

 265,346,090  148,384,271 

13.3 The related parties from whom the maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 

calculated by reference to month-end balances are as under:

2023 2022

(Rupees)

Hilal Foods (Private) Limited 16,892,289 1,230,443

Kings Foods (Private) Limited  -   632,650

Shalimar Foods Products 1,487,346 1,994,231

Mac Business Solution (Private) Limited 29,693,387  -   

TGA Sustainability (Private) Limited 112,984,345  -   

Toyo Packaging (Private) Limited 104,288,723 144,526,947
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13.4 Ageing of trade debts as at the reporting date is as under:

 
Past due but not impaired

Neither

past due nor > 30 days up > 60 days >90 days

Total impaired to 60 Days upto 90 days upto180 Days >180 days

------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------

Related parties

Hilal Foods (Private) Limited  16,892,289  4,933,235  11,959,054  -    -    -   

Shalimar Foods Products  1,487,346  397,497  1,089,849 

Mac Business Solution (Private) Limited  29,693,387  14,327,755  964,810  14,400,822  -    -   

TGA Sustainability (Private) Limited  112,984,345  12,963,360  21,000,026  21,007,981  58,012,978  -   

Toyo Packaging (Private) Limited  104,288,723  28,721,023  38,511,219  28,364,660  8,691,821  -   

 265,346,090  60,945,373  72,435,109  63,773,463  67,102,296  1,089,849 

Other than related parties  663,513,410  275,740,919  94,296,899  33,628,316  86,806,401  173,040,875 

2023  928,859,500  336,686,292  166,732,008  97,401,779  153,908,697  174,130,724 

Past due but not impaired

Neither

past due nor > 30 days up > 60 days >90 days

Total impaired to 60 Days upto 90 days upto180 Days >180 days

---------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------

Related parties

Hilal Foods (Private) Limited  1,230,443  -    1,230,443  -    -    -   

Kings Foods (Private) Limited  632,650  -    -    -    -    632,650 

Shalimar Foods Products  1,994,231  -    599,444  1,394,787  -    -   

Toyo Packaging (Private) Limited  144,526,947  21,030,623  20,018,497  27,695,922  48,958,849  26,823,056 

 148,384,271  21,030,623  21,848,384  29,090,709  48,958,849  27,455,706 

Other than related parties  539,891,607  359,302,379  33,173,774  2,999,928  80,952,235  63,463,291 

2022  688,275,878  380,333,002  55,022,158  32,090,637  129,911,084  90,918,997 

 

2023 2022

14
LOANS AND ADVANCES - UNSECURED, CONSIDERED 

GOOD
Note (Rupees)

Loans 

Employees 14.1  2,185,939  3,356,333 

Advances 

- Suppliers and contractors  40,103,288  32,759,369 

- Employees  8,385,116  10,653,477 

- Others  19,538,465  6,862,928 

 68,026,869  50,275,774 

 70,212,808  53,632,107 

14.1 Represents interest free loans given to the employees in accordance with the Company’s policy. 

         

14.2 Represents advances given to employees for business expenses and are settled as and when the 

expenses are incurred. 
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15 SHORT TERM DEPOSIT, PREPAYMENTS AND 2023 2022

OTHER RECEIVABLES Note (Rupees)

Short Term deposits - unsecured, considered good

-   Containers  21,858,181  27,458,546 

-   Nazir High Court 29.1.3  9,525,757  9,525,757 

-   Margin against Letter of Credit 15.1  205,995,776  107,070 

-   Others  13,695,257  7,696,150 

 251,074,971  44,787,523 

Short-term prepayments 15.2  13,163,183  1,803,534 

Other receivables  1,265,738  33,746,410 

 265,503,892  80,337,467 

15.1 This represents LC margin kept with the scheduled banks in relation to import of specified items.

 

15.2 Represents prepayments made for the internet connection, mobile bills and fuel cards given to 

employees.

2023 2022

16 TAXATION – NET (Rupees)

Income tax refundable  57,455,957  134,972,110 

Sales tax (payable)/refundable  (24,139,254)  12,351,764 

 33,316,703  147,323,874 

17 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT          

     

 This comprise of investment in (TDRs) amounting to Rs.10.524 Million (2022: Rs. Nil) at a rate of 

16.5%. These TDRs are submitted as bank guarantee to SSGC being a security deposit.  

        

2023 2022

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note (Rupees)

Cash in hand  5,551,208  285,638 

Cash at banks – current accounts  201,880,419  78,408,779 

Cash at banks – saving accounts 18.1  60,430,945  -   

 267,862,572  78,694,417 

18.1 Saving account carry profit rates ranging from 7.5% to 10% per annum (2022:Nil)
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19 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

     

2023 2022 2023 2022

(Number of Shares) (Rupees)

Authorised share capital

 70,000,000  70,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each  700,000,000  700,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

2023 2022 Fully paid ordinary shares of 

(Number of Shares) Rs. 10/- each

 25,986,000  25,986,000 - Issued for cash  259,860,000  259,860,000 

 12,900,000  12,900,000 - Issued as fully paid bonus shares  129,000,000  129,000,000 

 20,415,150  20,415,150 - Issued as right shares at a premium  204,151,500  204,151,500 

 59,301,150  59,301,150  593,011,500  593,011,500 

19.1 The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements 

in the form of cash, bonus and right shares as and when declared by the Company. All shares carry 

one vote per share without restriction. 

2023 2022

20 RESERVES (Rupees)

Capital reserve  173,566,620  173,566,620 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  623,040,000  623,040,000 

Revenue reserve  503,635,441  186,920,457 

 1,300,242,061  983,527,077 

       

2023 2022

21 DIMINISHING MUSHARIKA ARRANGEMENT Note (Rupees)

Outstanding 21.1  83,093,573  167,428,182 

Current portion  (51,507,908)  (94,665,025)

Long Term  31,585,665  72,763,157 

21.1 The Company had obtained a diminishing musharika facility from a financial institution for plant and 

machinery aggregating to Rs. 368 million for a period of 5 years. The rate of return used as the discounting 

factor is 3 months KIBOR plus 2.5 percent. Musharika units are to be purchased in 5 years in 20 quarterly 

instalments latest by June 2024 and are secured against the specific charge over plant and machinery 

with 25% margin.   
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22 LEASE LIABILITIES           

   

22.1 The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the period are as follows:

        

2023 2022

Note (Rupees)

As at 1 July  449,499  20,550,664 

Adjustment  (449,499)  -   

Addition  1,937,226  5,568 

Interest  34  208,035  1,792,176 

Payments  (782,992)  (21,898,909)

As at 30 June  1,362,269  449,499 

Current  585,877  449,499 

Non-Current  776,392  -   

 1,362,269  449,499 

22.2 The Company also has a leased asset with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the 

‘short-term’ lease recognition exemption for such lease. 

 The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss: 

        

2023 2022

Note (Rupees)

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets  9.6  576,535  11,584,113 

Interest expense on lease liabilities  34  208,035  1,792,176 

Expense relating to short-term leases  32  12,351,000  10,740,000 

 13,135,570  24,116,289 

22.3 The amount of future lease payments together with the present value of the minimum lease payments 

and the periods during which they fall due are as follows: 

   
2023 2022

Minimum Present Minimum Present

Lease Value Lease Value

Payments of MLP Payments of MLP

(MLP)

---------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------

Within one year  782,992  585,876  462,194  449,499 

After one year but not more than five years  861,292  776,392  -    -   

Total minimum lease payments  1,644,284  1,362,268  462,194  449,499 

Less: Finance charges  (282,016)  -    (12,695)  -   

Present value of minimum lease payments  1,362,268  1,362,268  449,499  449,499 

Less: Current portion  (585,876)  (585,876)  (449,499)  (449,499)

 776,392  776,392  -    -   
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2023 2022

23 DEFFERED TAXATION-NET Note (Rupees)

Taxable temporary differences arising due to:

- accelerated tax depreciation  269,921,421  203,932,919 

- accelerated tax amortization  114,836  (49,865)

- right-of-use assets  530,669  243,429 

- OCI Impact of gratuity  (2,044,228)  1,131,887 

- provision for GIDC  (228,492)  (130,354)

 268,294,206  205,128,016 

Deductible temporary differences arising due to:

- lease liabilities  (302,793)  -   

- provision for staff retirement benefits – gratuity  (31,542,494)  (17,961,665)

- provision for expected credit losses  (26,694,821)  (9,666,527)

- unrealized exchange losses  (5,527,277)  (5,836,800)

- unutilized tax losses  -    (40,142,208)

- minimum tax  (11,019,883)  (69,912,499)

 (75,087,268)  (143,519,699)

23.1  193,206,958  61,608,317 

23.1 Deferred tax expenses amounting to Rs.131.5 million (2022: Rs. 17.21 million) has been recognised 

in statement of profit or loss (Note 37). 

       

2023 2022

24 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS - STAFF GRATUITY Note (Rupees)

24.1 The amount recognized in the statement of financial

position is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 24.2  80,878,191  61,936,775 

24.2 Changes in the present value of defined

 benefit obligation are as follows:

As at July  61,936,775  48,502,400 

Charge for the period 24.3  23,473,044  15,764,445 

Re-measurement loss recognized in other

comprehensive income  5,241,610  3,903,059 

Benefits paid  (2,507,308)  (1,238,431)

Advances paid  (7,265,930)  (4,994,698)

As at June  80,878,191  61,936,775 
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2023 2022

24.3 Charge for the year recognized in the statement of Note (Rupees)

profit or  loss is as follows:

Current service cost  15,854,833  11,243,281 

Interest cost  7,618,211  4,521,164 

 23,473,044  15,764,445 

24.4 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 31.1  14,030,446  10,117,486 

Administrative expenses 32.1  8,055,054  5,339,144 

Marketing and selling expenses 33.1  1,387,544  307,815 

 23,473,044  15,764,445 

24.5 The principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuations carried out as of June 30, 2023 using the 

‘Projected Unit Credit’ method are as follows: 

        

2023 2022

Expected rate of increase in salary level 17% p.a 12% p.a

Discount rate 16.25% p.a 13.25% p.a

24.6 Impact of changes in assumption on present value of defined benefit scheme without payable is 

as follows:

        

Assumption 1% increase 1% increase

(Rupees)

Discount rate  103,067,775  79,376,984 

Salary increase  119,630,329  93,275,546 

Assumption 1% decrease 1% decrease

(Rupees)

Discount rate  (119,074,414)  (92,844,887)

Salary increase  (102,466,308)  (78,903,289)

24.7 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation: 2023 2022

(Years)

Weighted average duration 7.24 7.86
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24.8 Description of the risks to the Company        

      

 The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following risks:     

         

 Mortality risks – The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the 

beneficiaries’ service/age distribution and the benefit.     

              

 Final salary risks – The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what 

was assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount increases similarly. 

         

              

 Withdrawal risks – The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect 

could go either way depending on the beneficiaries’ service/age distribution and the benefit. 

24.9 Comparison of five years:

As at June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------

Present value of defined 

benefit obligation  80,878,191  61,936,775  48,502,400  41,526,179  25,411,876 
        

2023 2022

25 PROVISION FOR GAS INFRASTRUCTURE Note (Rupees)

  DEVELOPMENT CESS

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess  224,573,316  226,794,579 

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities  (165,068,823)  (165,068,823)

 59,504,493  61,725,756 

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors  713,972,759  594,088,818 

Import bills for goods and fixed asset  734,997,968  597,178,193 

Accrued liabilities  80,912,882  22,432,278 

Advances from customers - unsecured (contract liabilities)  118,881,343  98,919,806 

Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 26.1  207,903,949  177,504,501 

Workers’ Welfare Fund  25,299,286  17,674,019 

Withholding tax payable  34,300,285  27,390,473 

Others  3,976,689  8,275,457 

1,920,245,161  1,543,463,545 

26.1 Workers’ Profits Participation Fund

Balance at the beginning of the period  177,504,501  166,987,775 

Charged for the year 35  38,447,246  13,794,219 

Interest on Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 34  18,302,734  10,389,549 

Paid during the year  (26,350,532)  (13,667,042)

 207,903,949  177,504,501 
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2023 2022

27 SHORT-TERM BORROWING - SECURED Note (Rupees)

Istisna arrangement 27.1  213,821,187  396,653,938 

 213,821,187  396,653,938 

27.1 Represents Islamic financing facility of Rs. 213.8 million (2022:396.1 million) obtained from an Islamic 

bank which is payable within four months carrying markup of  6 months KIBOR plus 2.5% and is secured 

against Joint Pari Passu charge of Rs. 334 million over current assets, joint Pari Passu charge of Rs. 220 

million over plant and machinery of the Company and joint Pari Passu charge of Rs. 113 million over 

leasehold land and building of the Company. The Company has fully availed Istisna arrangement during 

the year. 

   

2023 2022

28 ACCRUED MARK-UP (Rupees)

Diminishing musharika arrangement  2,668,026  4,277,792 

Lease liabilities  38,636  -   

Istisna arrangement  3,990,327  6,942,691 

 6,696,989  11,220,483 

29 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS      

       

29.1 Contingencies      

       

29.1.1 In the year 2017, sales tax audit for the tax year 2012-2014 of the Company was selected and 

an order was passed by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue dated October 23, 2017 for a 

demand of Rs. 3,897,611/- against the Company. An appeal against the above order has been filed 

before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals II by the Company and during the year, the 

Commissioner Inland Revenue Authority (CIRA) has set aside the issues pertaining to sales tax 

amounting to Rs. 766,794/- and forward the same for further examination to Deputy Commissioner 

Inland Revenue.

        

 Since then, no sales tax demand stands payable as of today unless re-examined / reassessed by the 

DCIR as per the direction of CIRA. Therefore, company based on advice of its tax consultants has 

not made any provision in these financial statements.       

 

29.1.2 In August 2015, Sui Southern Gas Company (SSGC) increased rates of natural gas on the basis of 

notification dated 31 August 2015 issued by Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) whereby prices 

for natural gas for industrial sector have increased from Rs. 488 to Rs. 600 per MMBTU whereas 

those for the captive power sector have been increased from Rs. 573 to Rs. 600 per MMBTU and 

the Company falls in the category of captive power. The Company challenged the OGRA notification 

and filed writ petition in the HCS in Suit No. 2419 of 2015. Thereafter, HCS vide its order dated May 

18, 2016, decided the case in Company’s favor and concluded that the OGRA notification lacks the 

sanctity of law and it cannot be validated in terms of Section 7 and 8 of the Oil and Gas Regulatory 

Authority Ordinance 2002. SSGC filed an appeal in the HCS which was dismissed on August 15, 

2017. Subsequently, SSGC has taken the matter to the Supreme Court of Pakistan and filed petition 

to appeal against the order dated August 15, 2017.   
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 Further, OGRA in suppression of its Notification No. SRO 876(1)2015 dated August 31,2015 notified 

the sale price and minimum charges, in respect of natural gas to industrial customers with effect from 

December 15, 2016 being flat rate of Rs.600 per MMBTU. The Company challenged the impugned 

notification dated December 30, 2016 before the HCS. HCS has passed ad-interim orders dated 

January 20, 2017 suggesting stay on the rates aforementioned, while ordering plaintiffs to deposit 

the differential amount in terms of impugned notification as security till further orders. Accordingly, 

the Company has deposited the security to Nazir of High Court as disclosed in note 15 to financial 

statements.

        

 However, due to the inherent uncertainties involved in the matter, the management based on the 

opinion of their legal advisor, has not accounted for increase in tariff rate amounting to Rs. 8.33 

million as of 30 June 2018 as the management is confident that the decision of the case will be in 

their favor.  

       

29.1.3 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue had passed an order under Section 11 of Sales Tax 

Act, 1990. An appeal against the above order has been filed before the Commissioner Inland 

Revenue - Appeals II (CIRA) by the Company and an order was passed by the CIRA dated August 

31, 2022 wherein tax demand of Rs.21,344,007/- had been upheld and remaining tax demand of 

Rs.291,477,683 has been remanded back by CIRA with specific directions. The company had filed an 

appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the demand upheld in aforesaid 

order of the CIRA. Main hearing of the appeal has been heard by the Appellate Tribunal Inland 

Revenue (ATIR) and the case has been reserved for order.     

       

 The concerned Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue had initiated the remand back proceeding and 

confirmed the demand as established earlier without following the direction of the CIRA through its Order-

in-Original No.14/2022-2023 dated 24 June 2023. The company also filed an appeal before CIRA against 

aforesaid remand back order which has been heard by CIRA and the case has been reserved for order. 

      

 On the basis of factual and legal position in above pending appeals with the Commissioner Inland 

Revenue - Appeals II (CIRA) and the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), our tax consultant’s 

anticipate a favorable outcome of such appeals in favor of the company. Therefore, company based 

on aforesaid position has not made any provision in these financial statements.  

       

29.1.4 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue had issued demand of penalty of Rs.8,503,141/-and 

default surcharge of Rs.1,305,330. An appeal against the above order has been filed before the 

Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals II (CIRA) by the Company and an order was passed by the 

Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals II (CIRA)  dated April 11, 2023 decided the appeal against 

such order and deleted the demand. The department had filed an appeal before the Appellate 

Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against appellate order of Commissioner Inland  Revenue - Appeals 

II. The hearing against aforesaid appeal has not been fixed by the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue 

as yet. Therefore, company based on advice of its tax consultants has not made any provision in 

these financial statements.

        

29.1.5 Income Tax Returns upto Tax Year 2022, corresponding to Financial Year ended upto June 30, 2022 

have been submitted, which are construed as deemed assessment orders under Section 120 of the 

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 [the Ordinance].  

      

29.1.6 Tax Year 2016; Income Tax Audit has been selected by the Commissioner Inland Revenue under 

Section 214C read with Section 177 in terms of Clause 72B, Part IV, Second Schedule to the 

Ordinance. However, no final Show Cause Notice has been served on the Company till 30 June 2023 

and has now been barred by time in terms of Section 122 read with Section 174 of the Ordinance. 
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29.1.7 Tax Year 2020, 2021 and 2022; The Income Tax Assessment under Section 120 of the Ordinance is 

subject to amendment in terms of Section 122(5A) and a show cause notice has been issued under 

Section 122(9) of the Ordinance. The company has submitted legal response to the notice, however, 

a reply on the rebuttal is awaited from him. The company is gathering the desired information to 

comply with the above Notice.  

29.1.8 Tax Year 2022; The Notice for the payment of super tax of Rs.15,897,889/- is issued by the Deputy 

Commissioner-IR to the company who identified the computational error therein. As a result of such 

error, the super tax worked out to Rs. 7,766,794/- which the company requested him to adjust from 

the tax refunds for the Tax Year 2022. Hence, no super tax is stand payable and no provision is 

required to be made in the Financial Statements.

       

29.1.9 MACPAC filed a Constitutional petition No. 3407 of 2014 before the High Court of Sindh to restrain 

the Federal Government from coercing MACPAC to transfer 5% of its profits to the Workers’ Profit 

Participation Fund. The High Court of Sindh granted an ad interim order in favour of MACPAC, which 

is still in operation. The petition is still pending before the High Court of Sindh and MACPAC has a 

reasonable probability of success in this petition.  

       

29.1.10  MACPAC  filed a Suit No. 798 of 2016 before the High Court of Sindh and impugned the insertion 

of Tariff Heading 9830.0000 in the Second Schedule to   the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 

through the Finance Act, 2013 and subsequent show cause notice dated 03.12.2015 issued by the 

Sindh Revenue Board on the basis of this tariff heading and said heading reads “Services provided 

in the matter of manufacturing or processing for others on toll basis. The High Court of Sindh granted 

an ad interim order in favour of MACPAC, which is still in operation. The suit is still pending before the 

High Court of Sindh and MACPAC has a reasonable probability of success in this suit. 

 

2023 2022

29.2 COMMITMENTS Note (Rupees)

29.2.1 Outstanding bank guarantees  11,873,412  11,873,412 

29.2.2 Outstanding letters of credit 29.2.3  384,962,278  98,149,509 

29.2.3 The aforesaid letter of credit is secured against lien over import documents.

2023 2022

30 SALES- NET Note (Rupees)

Gross Sales 

- Local  6,489,949,432  4,844,716,007 

- Exports 30.1  -    59,172,891 

 6,489,949,432  4,903,888,898 

Less: Sales tax  (984,486,993)  (729,746,715)

 5,505,462,439  4,174,142,183 

30.1 The sale of CPP films, were made to a customer in Oman.



  |  MACPAC Annual Report 202382

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022

31 COST OF SALES Note (Rupees)

Opening stock of raw material  328,872,517  178,169,034 

Purchases during the year  3,316,019,768  2,901,879,812 

 3,644,892,285  3,080,048,846 

Closing stock of raw material 12  (539,102,630)  (328,872,517)

Raw material consumed  3,105,789,655  2,751,176,329 

Manufacturing expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits 31.1  252,388,531  188,146,775 

Oil and lubricants / diesel  13,465,349  10,283,808 

Packing material consumed  116,004,914  94,731,218 

Consumable stores  17,194,854  9,819,586 

Water charges  9,900,986  8,128,377 

Repairs and maintenance  82,364,344  52,371,351 

Vehicle running and maintenance  14,410,206  7,948,003 

Utilities  488,648,226  276,742,525 

Insurance  11,823,314  10,828,878 

Telephone  2,819,791  907,229 

Staff welfare  20,958,008  11,125,267 

Security charges  3,066,137  2,836,538 

Depreciation 9.4 & 9.7  118,763,216  117,324,415 

Transportation  34,330,945  14,226,231 

Rent, rates and taxes 31.2  1,551,420  1,551,420 

Others  9,965,118  16,685,305 

 1,197,655,359  823,656,925 

 4,303,445,014  3,574,833,254 

Opening work-in-process  88,488,789  80,241,250 

 4,391,933,803  3,655,074,504 

Closing work-in-process 12  (133,110,261)  (88,488,789)

Cost of goods manufactured  4,258,823,542  3,566,585,715 

Finished goods

Opening stock  10,755,258  7,545,623 

Closing stock 12  (75,569,099)  (10,755,258)

 (64,813,841)  (3,209,635)

 4,194,009,701  3,563,376,080 

31.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits includes staff retirement benefit amounting to Rs. 14.03  million 

(2022: Rs. 10.12 million).  
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31.2 This represents charges paid to Port Qasim Authority in respect of administration and 

maintenance. 

2023 2022

32 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note (Rupees)

Salaries, wages and other benefits 32.1  64,717,229  50,262,016 

Directors' remuneration  46,004,308  22,749,896 

Vehicle maintenance  13,813,395  8,121,261 

Legal and professional  8,615,751  4,236,424 

Traveling and accommodation  6,227,830  1,740,559 

Insurance  547,086  782,032 

Fees and subscription  12,312,552  15,049,941 

Rent, rates and taxes 32.2  12,351,000  10,740,000 

Advertisement  434,897  350,571 

Postage and stationery  1,040,471  1,207,478 

Donation 32.3  5,472,500  502,000 

Telephone  1,350,991  1,459,562 

Newspaper and periodicals  10,050  8,835 

Transportation  -    12,000 

Amortization 10.2  128,004  102,142 

Fuel and power  2,325,796  1,758,637 

Auditors' remuneration 32.4  2,747,412  2,450,366 

Depreciation 9.4  5,381,368  2,224,980 

Repair and maintenance  1,988,601  2,338,408 

Staff welfare  5,941,006  9,088,059 

Security  1,642,844  1,857,001 

Water  447,131  130,827 

Others  6,759,047  2,224,357 

 200,259,269  139,397,353 

32.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits includes staff retirement benefit amounting to Rs. 8.06 million 

(2022: Rs. 5.34 million).        

         

32.2 This represents expense relating to short term lease.       

   

32.3 Details of donations given to single party are as follows: 

2023 2022

(Rupees)

Karachi Institute of Kidney Diseases Association  600,000  -   

The Citizen Foundation  500,000  500,000 
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2023 2022

Note (Rupees)

32.4 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee  1,409,399  1,233,991 

Fee for review of half yearly  302,500  275,000 

Fee for review of code of corporate governance  91,053  82,775 

Other services  247,500  225,000 

Out of pocket expenses  696,960  633,600 

 2,747,412  2,450,366 

33 MARKETING AND SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 33.1  26,444,314  19,202,492 

Vehicle running and maintenance  3,692,847  2,045,836 

Travelling and accommodation  809,217  394,506 

Cartage and Octroi  58,836,382  41,840,381 

Postage and stationery  1,239,584  289,887 

Fees and subscription  518,856  -   

Telephone  269,548  268,185 

Power / electricity  88,953  69,036 

Staff welfare  506,514  64,949 

Sales promotion  6,764,158  3,158,834 

Depreciation 9.4 & 9.7  1,763,165  1,494,828 

Insurance  130,552  245,790 

Others  581,942  168,917 

 101,646,032  69,243,641 

33.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits includes staff retirement benefit amounting to Rs. 1.39 million 

(2022: Rs. 0.31 million).    

2023 2022

34 FINANCE COSTS Note (Rupees)

Mark-up on:

- diminishing musharika arrangements  23,624,232  23,748,653 

- lease liabilities 22 & 28  246,671  1,792,176 

- letters of credit  4,752,607  7,926,895 

- GIDC  (2,221,263)  6,367,082 

- istisna arrangement  74,103,880  35,455,523 

 100,506,127  75,290,329 

Interest on Workers' Profits Participation Fund 26.1  18,302,734  10,389,549 

Bank charges  14,933,403  8,229,929 

 33,236,137  18,619,478 

 133,742,264  93,909,807 
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2023 2022

35 OTHER  OPERATING EXPENSES Note (Rupees)

Worker's Profit Participation Fund 26.1  38,447,246  13,794,218 

Workers Welfare Fund  12,625,267  1,838,529 

Exchange loss - net  168,194,084  76,861,876 

Surcharge on annual maintenance charges  955,368  955,368 

Others Expenses  34,769,464  27,944,938 

 254,991,429  121,394,929 

36 OTHER INCOME

Income from non-financial assets:

Scrap sales  16,580,778  15,456,014 

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets  5,657,191  584,935 

Amortization of deferred income  -    2,183,380 

Others  92,728,881  60,850,315 

 114,966,850  79,074,644 

37 TAXATION

Current  195,589,177  60,820,965 

Prior  (5,736,144)  358,565 

Deferred  131,598,641  17,210,887 

 321,451,673  78,390,417 

37.1 The income tax assessment of the Company has been finalized up to tax year 2022.

37.2 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit:

Profit / (loss) for the year  700,665,187  262,638,794 

Tax at the enacted tax rate 29% (2022: 29%)  203,192,904  76,165,250 

Super Tax under Section 4C 10% (2022: 3%)  76,476,095  8,792,121 

Final tax regime  -    (591,729)

Prior year tax  (5,736,144)  358,565 

Effect of rate difference  45,352,006  -   

Effect of Permanent Difference  3,403,591  -   

Effect of income subject to minimum tax not adjustable  -    (6,333,790)

Others  (1,236,779)  -   

 321,451,673  78,390,417 

Effective tax rate 46% 30%
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2023 2022

38 EARNING PER SHARE-BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit / (Loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders  379,213,514  184,248,377 

(Number of shares)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding  59,301,150  59,301,150 

during the year

(Rupees)

Earnings per share - basic and diluted  6.39  3.11 

 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at 30 June 2023 and 30 

June 2022.            

 

39 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVES  

           

 The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for the period in respect of remuneration 

and benefits to the chief executive, directors and executives of the Company were as follows:

 

Chief Executive Director Executives

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

------- (Rupees) ------- ------- (Rupees) ------- ------- (Rupees) -------

Remuneration  25,579,014  16,043,253  11,440,671  11,237,333  74,270,947  75,044,953 

Medical allowance  3,000,002  1,263,213  1,098,100  1,195,016  2,363,666  2,157,215 

Other perquisites 

(Motor vehicle 

maintenance etc.)  1,042,424  225,542  1,259,103  678,657  12,658,431  4,211,154 

 29,621,440  17,532,008  13,797,874  13,111,006  89,293,044  81,413,322 

Number of 

person(s) 1 1 1 1 18 19

 

 Executives means employees other than chief executive and directors whose basic salary exceeds 

Rs 1,200,000 per financial year.    

            

 In addition, the Chief Executive, directors and certain executives are also provided with use of the 

Company’s maintained cars and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment for 

official use.      

            

 Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for fees to non-executive director is Rs. 2.64 

million (2022: 0.1) against attending the board meetings.  
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40 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES        

     

 The related parties of the Company comprise of associated companies, major shareholders, 

directors, key management personnel. All the transactions with related parties are entered into at 

agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The transactions with related 

parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are as follows: 

2023 2022
(Rupees)

Directors and Key Management Personnel

Remuneration 77,781,147  59,735,858 

Office rent charged  6,175,500  10,740,000 

Office rent received  3,489,600  2,617,200 

Office rent paid  6,175,500  10,740,000 

Common Directorship

Toyo Packaging (Private) Limited 
    Sale of goods / processing charges  249,918,745  205,544,477 
    Receipts against sale of goods / processing charges  331,511,565  191,066,220 

Hilal Foods (Private) Limited 
    Sale of goods  41,742,178  32,579,869 
    Receipts against sale of goods  33,910,245  37,061,840 

Kings Foods (Private) Limited

    Receipts against sale of goods  632,650  -   

Shalimar Food Products
    Sale of goods  9,084,311  8,839,692 
    Receipts against sale of goods  11,172,625  8,240,246 

Mac Properties (Private) Limited
    Office rent charged  6,175,500  -   
    Office rent paid  6,175,500  -   

Mac Business Solutions (Private) Limited
    Sale of goods  36,604,565  188,193,998 
    Receipts against sale of goods  17,702,548  193,991,450 

TGA Sustainability (Private) Limited
    Sale of goods  276,134,255  -   
    Receipts against sale of goods  228,156,618  -   
    Receipts against utilities  4,871,399  -   

40.1 The related parties status of outstanding receivables, if any, as at June 30, 2023 and 30 June 2022 

are disclosed in respective notes to these financial statements. 
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2023 2022

Note (Rupees)

41 CASH GENERATED  FROM OPERATIONS

Profit / (loss) before taxation  700,665,187  262,638,794 

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation 9.4 & 9.7  125,907,749  121,044,223 

Amortization 10.1  128,004  102,142 

Provision for gratuity 24.2  23,473,044  15,764,445 

Finance costs 34  133,742,264  93,909,807 

Provision for ECL 13.1  35,115,407  3,256,223 

Exchange loss - unrealized 35  14,172,506  20,126,895 

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 36  (5,657,191)  (584,935)

Deferred income 36  -    (2,183,380)

 326,881,783  251,435,420 

 1,027,546,970  514,074,214 

Working capital changes 41.1  (376,980,984)  10,144,982 

 650,565,986  524,219,196 

41.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

Stock-in-trade  (102,116,744)  (454,831,152)

Stores and Spares  (46,579,607)

Trade debts  (240,583,623)  (225,519,101)

Loans and advances  (16,580,701)  (17,981,418)

Short trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables  (185,166,425)  (13,283,514)

Sales tax refundable / (payable)  36,491,018  (9,298,231)

      (554,536,082)  (720,913,416)

 (Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities

Short term borrowings  (182,832,751)  36,763,452 

Trade and other payables  362,609,112  691,021,205 

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess payable  (2,221,263)  3,273,741 

 (376,980,984)  10,144,982 

42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS       
        

 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT       

        

 The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market risks, credit risk and 

liquidity risk. The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment 

and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the 

following risks from its use of financial instruments.       
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42.1 Credit risk       

        

 Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail 

to discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts 

to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties 

and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.     

    

 Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business 

activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations 

to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of 

credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a 

particular industry.         

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2023 2022

Note (Rupees)

Long-term deposits 11 12,776,285 20,026,285

Trade debts 13 860,411,242 654,943,026

Loans and advances 14 70,212,808 53,632,107

Trade deposits and other receivables 15 252,340,709 78,533,933

Bank balances 18 262,311,364 78,408,779

1,458,052,408 885,544,130

 Quality of financial assets       

       

 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 

reference to external credit ratings or the historical information about counterparty default rates as 

shown below: 

2023 2022

(Rupees)

Bank balances

A1+ (PACRA) 76,671,865  32,242,718 

A-1 JCR VIS  652,338  4,661,564 

A-1+ (JCR VIS) 184,982,933  41,500,269 

A-2 (JCR VIS)  4,228  4,228 
 262,311,364  78,408,779 

42.2 Market risk       

        

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due 

to changes in market variables such as interest rate and foreign exchange rates. The objective of 

market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with an acceptable range.
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(i) Interest rate risk      

       

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk in respect 

of Company’s short-term financing arrangements at floating interest rates to meet its business 

operations and working capital requirements.       

 

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, 

with all other variables held constant, on the Company’s profit  before tax (through impact on floating 

rate borrowings).This analysis excludes the impact of movement in market variables on non-financial 

assets and liabilities of the Company. Further, interest rate sensitivity does not have a symmetric 

impact on the Company’s result. 

Increase 

/ decrease in Effect on loss

basis points before tax

(Rupees) 

30-Jun-23 + 100  3,028,022 

 - 100  (3,028,022)

30-Jun-22 + 100  5,757,521 

 - 100  (5,757,521)

(ii) Foreign currency risk      

       

 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of 

changes in foreign currency exchange rates primarily relates to the Company’s operating activities. 

The Company manages its currency risk by effective fund management and timely repayment of 

its current liabilities. The Company, however, has not hedged its foreign currency liabilities as the 

management has assessed that it will not be cost beneficial. 

   

 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk in major currencies at their gross values is as 

follows: 

2023 2022

(US Dollar)

Creditors 2,231,553 2,551,198

(EURO)

Creditors 287,889 221,634

 Following is the demonstration of  the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rate of 

all currencies applied to assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2023 represented in foreign currencies, 

with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s loss before tax.
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Change in Effect on loss

exchange rate before tax

(%) (Rupees)

30-Jun-23 +10%  72,829,229 

-10%  (72,829,229)

30-Jun-22 +10%  56,938,592 

-10%  (56,938,592)

(iii) Other price risk      
        

 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will 

fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as equity price risk. Equity price risk is the risk 

arising from uncertainties about future values of investment securities. As at the reporting date, the 

Company is not exposed to other price risk as the Company does not have any investment in equity 

shares.

        

42.3 Liquidity risk       

        

 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated 

with financial liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the 

availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability 

to close out market positions. The management believes that it will be able to fulfill its financial 

obligations.  

 Table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual 

undiscounted payments. Balances due within 12 months equals to their carrying balances as the 

impact of discounting is not significant:

 
Less than 6 More than 5

On demand months 6 to 12 months 1 to 5 years years Total

--------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------

June 30, 2023

Lease liabilities  -    292,939  292,939  776,392  -    1,362,269 

Diminishing musharika  -    15,792,832  15,792,832  51,507,908  -    83,093,572 

Trade and other payables  -    1,919,942,286  302,875  -    -    1,920,245,161 

Accrued mark-up  6,696,989  -    -    -    -    6,696,989 

Short-term borrowings  -    213,821,187  -    -    -    213,821,187 

 6,696,989  2,149,849,244  16,388,646  52,284,300  -    2,225,219,178 

June 30, 2022

Lease liabilities  -    449,499  -    -    -    449,499 

Diminishing musharika  -    36,381,579  36,381,579  94,665,026  -    167,428,184 

Trade and other payables  -    1,542,728,223  735,322  -    -    1,543,463,545 

Accrued mark-up  11,220,483  -    -    -    -    11,220,483 

Short-term borrowings  -    396,653,938  -    -    -    396,653,938 

 11,220,483  1,976,213,239  37,116,901  94,665,026  -    2,119,215,649 

  Effective interest / yield rates for the financial liabilities are mentioned in the respective notes to the 

financial statements.       
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42.4 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Short term
borrowing

used for cash
 management

purpose

Lease liabilities
including

diminishing

musharika

Revenue
reserve

Total

----------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------

Balance as at 1 July 2022  393,296,928  196,909,475  186,920,457  777,126,860 

Changes from financing cash flows:

Repayment of  borrowing  -    -    -    -   

Proceeds from borrowing  (182,832,751)  -    -    (182,832,751)

Lease rentals paid  -    (84,334,609)  -    (84,334,609)

Total changes from financing activities  (182,832,751)  (84,334,609)  -    (267,167,360)

Other changes:

Finance cost  78,856,487  23,870,903  -    102,727,390 

Finance cost paid  (85,799,178)  (16,446,861)  -    (102,246,039)

Total loan related other changes  (6,942,691)  7,424,042  -    481,351 

Total equity related other changes  -    -    316,714,984  316,714,984 

Balance as at 30 June 2023  203,521,486  119,998,908  503,635,441  827,155,835 

        

43 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS       

        

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 

either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability; or      

- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

     

       

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.    

     

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants at in their best 

economic interest. 

       

 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participants ability to 

generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 

measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 

described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

as a whole:   
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 Level 1:   Quoted market price          

 

 Level 2:   Valuation techniques (market observable); and      

     

 Level 3:   Valuation techniques (non-market observables)      

        

 As of reporting date, the Company has no financial assets carried at fair value other than as disclosed 

in note 9.2 to these financial statements.    

            

44 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT         
    

 The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to remain as 

a going concern and continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders 

and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.    

         

 The Company monitors capital using a debt equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus 

net debt. Equity comprises of share capital and reserves. The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2023 and 

30 June 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022

(Rupees)

Lease liabilities  1,362,269  449,499 

Accrued mark-up  6,696,989  11,220,483 

Diminishing musharika arrangement  83,093,573  167,428,183 

Short-term borrowings  213,821,187  396,653,938 

Total debts  304,974,018  575,752,103 

Less: Cash and bank balances  (267,862,572)  (78,694,417)

Net debt  37,111,446  497,057,686 

Share capital  593,011,500  593,011,500 

Reserves  1,300,242,061  983,527,077 

Total equity  1,893,253,561  1,576,538,577 

Total capital  1,930,365,007  2,073,596,263 

Gearing ratio 1.92% 23.97%

45 OPERATING SEGMENTS       

        

 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

2023 2022

46 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (Number)

At year end 186 177

Average employees during the year 186 177
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

47 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2023 2022

Rated Actual Rated Actual

Operational capacity Capacity production Capacity production

---------------- (Metric Tons) ----------------

BOPP – Port Qasim Authority 15,000 11,669 15,000 12,103

CPP – Port Qasim Authority 7,000 6,164  7,000  6,023 
 

 Actual production was below capacity due to low demand and therefore the plant capacity was 

utilized to the extent of orders received from customers.

2023 2022

48 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note (Rupees)

Cash and bank balances 18  267,862,572  78,694,417 
           

49 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS          

  

 The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on September 01, 2023 have 

recommended cash dividend @ 15% amounting to Rs.1.5 per share  (2022: 10%)   

          

50 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE        

      

 These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 01, 2023 by the Board of 

Directors of the Company. 

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Six Year Analysis
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Figures in PKR

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,884,453,068 1,948,072,161 1,913,023,144 1,935,662,870 1,415,678,086 1,177,261,267 

Intangible assets 836,118 408,566 510,708 638,385 797,985 907,435 

Other non-current assets 12,776,285 20,026,285 15,095,485 11,537,730 6,401,418 10,118,273 

Deferred tax asset - net - -                      - 1,318,676 - - 

Current assets 2,719,918,944 2,078,322,205 1,282,503,689 1,024,794,484 1,073,282,055 1,043,934,040 

Total assets 4,617,984,415   4,046,829,217   3,211,133,026 2,973,952,145 2,496,159,544 2,232,221,015 

Share capital 593,011,500 593,011,500 593,011,500 593,011,500 593,011,500 593,011,500 

Reserves 173,566,620 173,566,620 173,566,620 173,566,620 173,566,620 173,566,620 

Unappropriated profits / (losses) 503,635,441 186,920,457 5,443,251 (177,791,039) (113,939,276) 138,524,948 

Surplus on revaluation of PPE 623,040,000 623,040,000 623,040,000 623,040,000 - - 

Non-current liabilities 365,951,699 258,034,006 394,234,183 421,226,007 446,942,396 149,717,278 

Current liabilities 2,358,779,155 2,212,256,635 1,421,837,472 1,340,899,057 1,396,578,305 1,177,400,669 

Total equity and liabilities 4,617,984,415   4,046,829,217   3,211,133,026 2,973,952,145 2,496,159,544 2,232,221,015 

Property, Plant and Equipment 40.8 48.1 59.6 65.1 56.7 52.7 

Intangible assets 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Other non-current assets 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.5 

Deferred tax asset - net - - - 0.0 - - 

Current assets 58.9 51.4 39.9 34.5 43.0 46.8 

Total assets 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

Share capital 12.8 14.7 18.5 19.9 23.8 26.6 

Reserves 3.8 4.3 5.4 5.8 7.0 7.8 

Unappropriated profits / (losses) 10.9 4.6 0.2 (6.0) (4.6) 6.2 

Surplus on revaluation of PPE 13.5 15.4 19.4 20.9 - - 

Non-current liabilities 7.9 6.4 12.3 14.2 17.9 6.7 

Current liabilities 51.1 54.7 44.3 45.1 55.9 52.7 

Total equity and liabilities 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

Horizontal Analysis Percentage

Property, Plant and Equipment (3.3) 1.8 (1.2) 36.7 20.3 45.7 

Intangible assets 104.6 (20.0) (20.0) (20.0) (12.1) (20.0) 

Other non-current assets (36.2) 32.7 30.8 80.2 (36.7) 1.4 

Deferred tax asset - net - - (100.0) 100.0 - - 

Current assets 30.9 62.1 25.1 (4.5) 2.8 40.8 

Total assets 14.1 26.0 8.0 19.1 11.8 43.0 

Share capital - - - - - 52.5 

Reserves - - - - - 117.1 

Unappropriated profits / (losses) 169.4 3,334.0 103.1 (56.0) (182.3) 11.1 

Surplus on revaluation of PPE - - - 100.0 - - 

Non-current liabilities 41.8 (34.5) (6.4) (5.8) 198.5 (11.0) 

Current liabilities 6.6 55.6 6.0 (4.0) 18.6 47.3 

Total equity and liabilities 14.1 26.0 8.0 19.1 11.8 43.0 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Vertical Analysis Percentage
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Figures in PKR

Net sales 5,505,462,439 4,174,142,183 3,025,322,805 2,164,953,856 2,415,339,316 2,125,159,243 

Cost of sales (4,194,009,701) (3,563,376,080) (2,530,517,212) (2,107,605,178) (2,311,924,882) (1,902,336,855) 

Gross profit 1,311,452,738 610,766,103 494,805,593 57,348,678 103,414,434 222,822,388 

Marketing and selling expenses (101,646,032) (69,243,641) (62,955,826) (26,941,488) (29,607,769) (24,832,852) 

Administrative expenses (200,259,269) (139,397,353) (113,564,094) (88,211,804) (89,002,331) (78,339,177) 

Operating profit / (loss) 1,009,547,437 402,125,109 318,285,673 (57,804,614) (15,195,666) 119,650,359 

Finance Costs (133,742,264) (93,909,807) (91,710,220) (157,005,124) (88,709,026) (22,533,650) 

Other income 114,966,850 79,074,644 62,059,520 203,348,947 20,020,390 7,390,107 

Other expenses (290,106,836) (124,651,152) (14,622,408) (149,947,663) (116,788,605) (38,424,138) 

Profit / (loss) before taxation 700,665,187 262,638,794 274,012,564 (161,408,454) (200,672,907) 66,082,678 

Taxation (321,451,673) (78,390,417) (87,347,510) 98,553,356 (33,244,793) (11,234,120) 

Net profit / (loss) for the year 379,213,514 184,248,377 186,665,054 (62,855,098) (233,917,700) 54,848,558 

Vertical Analysis Percentage

Net sales 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

Cost of sales (76.2) (85.4) (83.6) (97.4) (95.7) (89.5) 

Gross profit 23.8 14.6 16.4 2.6 4.3 10.5 

Marketing and selling expenses (1.8) (1.7) (2.1) (1.2) (1.2) (1.2) 

Administrative expenses (3.6) (3.3) (3.8) (4.1) (3.7) (3.7) 

Operating profit / (loss) 18.3 9.6 10.5 (2.7) (0.6) 5.6 

Finance Costs (2.4) (2.2) (3.0) (7.3) (3.7) (1.1) 

Other income 2.1 1.9 2.1 9.4 0.8 0.3 

Other expenses (5.3) (3.0) (0.5) (6.9) (4.8) (1.8) 

Profit / (loss) before taxation 12.7 6.3 9.1 (7.5) (8.3) 3.1 

Taxation (5.8) (1.9) (2.9) 4.6 (1.4) (0.5) 

Net profit / (loss) for the year 6.9 4.4 6.2 (2.9) (9.7) 2.6 

Horizontal Analysis Percentage

Net sales 31.9 38.0 39.7 (10.4) 13.7 40.2 

Cost of sales 17.7 40.8 20.1 (8.8) 21.5 50.6 

Gross profit 114.7 23.4 762.8 (44.5) (53.6) (11.8) 

Marketing and selling expenses 46.8 10.0 133.7 (9.0) 19.2 9.5 

Administrative expenses 43.7 22.7 28.7 (0.9) 13.6 10.2 

Operating profit / (loss) 151.1 26.3 650.6 (280.4) (112.7) (24.7) 

Finance Costs 42.4 2.4  (41.6) 77.0 293.7 (15.4) 

Other income 45.4 27.4 (69.5) 915.7 170.9 17.9 

Other expenses 132.7 752.5 (90.2) 28.4 203.9 208.9 

Profit / (loss) before taxation 166.8 (4.2) 269.8 19.6 (403.7) (47.6) 

Taxation 310.1 (10.3) (188.6) 396.4 195.9 (76.5)

Net profit / (loss) for the year 105.8 (1.3) 397.0 73.1 (526.5) (29.9) 
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COMPOSITION OF BALANCE SHEET

FY 2023 FY 2023

FY 2022 FY 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - (Percentage) ASSETS - (Percentage)

Non Current
Liabili�es

8% 
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Others
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9% 
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Reserves
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Equipment
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0% 
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26%

Cash and Bank
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6% 
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8%
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1% 
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16%
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Balances

2% 

Other  Assets
7%

Non Current
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6% 
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Reserves

39%
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FINANCIALS AT A GLANCE

Sales Revenue (PKR in Million)
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Profitibility Ratios 

Gross Profit to Sales % 24% 15% 16% 3% 4% 10%

Operating Profit to Sales % 18% 10% 11% -3% -1% 6%

Net Profit to Sales % 7% 4% 6% -3% -10% 3%

EBITDA Margin to Sales % 20% 13% 15% 3% 3% 9%

Operating leverage ratio times 4.52 0.69 16.37 -27.05 -8.25 -0.61

Return on Equity % 20% 12% 13% -5% -36% 6%

Return on Capital employed % 21% 11% 11% -5% -25% 7%

Return on Fixed Assets % 20% 9% 10% -3% -17% 5%

Liquidity Ratios

Current ratio times 1.15 0.94 0.90 0.76 0.77 0.89

Quick ratio times 0.66 0.46 0.47 0.52 0.50 0.47

Cash to Current Liabilities times 0.11 0.04 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.03

Cash to Current Assets % 9.85% 3.79% 1.22% 1.78% 4.94% 3.24%

Cash flow from Operations to Sales % 12% 13% 10% 9% 8% 23%

Turnover/Management Efficiency Ratios 

Inventory turnover ratio times 3.76 4.26 5.48 5.99 5.33 4.07

No. of Days in Inventory days 96 84 66 60 67 88

Debtor turnover ratio times 6.81 7.25 8.06 5.74 5.44 6.21

No. of Days in Receivables days 53 50 45 63 66 58

Creditor turnover ratio times 2.51 3.36 4.03 2.86 2.73 3.30

No. of Days in Creditors days 143 107 89 126 132 109

Operating Cycle days 149 134 110 123 134 146

Cash conversion Cycle days 5 27 21 -3 2 37

Total Assets turnover ratio times 1.19 1.03 0.94 0.73 0.97 0.95

Fixed Assets turnover ratio times 2.92 2.14 1.58 1.12 1.71 1.81

Market Ratios 

Earnings per share (EPS) Rs. 6.39 3.11 3.15 -1.06 -3.94 0.99

Price Earnings ratio times 2.45 5.04 7.28 -21.78 -3.45 29.72

Price to Book ratio times 0.20 0.23 0.42 0.46 0.32 0.73

Break-up value per share Rs. 31.93 26.59 23.53 20.44 11.01 16.41

Capital Structure Ratios 

Net Assets per share Rs. 31.93 26.59 23.53 20.44 11.01 16.41

Financial leverage ratio times 0.16 0.25 0.36 0.50 0.60 0.02

Debt to Equity ratio times 0.048 0.085 0.215 0.308 0.446 0.004

SUMMARY OF CASH FLOWS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Rupees

Cash & cash equivalents - Opening 78,694,417 15,687,101                18,194,200               42,995,225            25,620,515                  5,562,050 

Net cash flows from Operating activities 399,484,291 346,294,426           216,928,343            (16,490,770)            (13,655,596)                397,123,139                  

Net cash flows (used in) Investing activities

Net cash flows (used in) / generated from Financing activities

(66,223,311) (173,365,856)          (96,508,554)           (14,636,362)           (404,758,370)             (442,506,424)             

(144,092,825) (109,921,253)           (122,926,888)          6,326,109               435,788,678               73,656,542                  

Changes in cash & cash equivalents 189,168,155 63,007,316              (2,507,099)              (24,801,023)            17,374,712                    28,273,257                  

Cash & cash equivalents - Closing 267,862,572 78,694,417                15,687,101                  18,194,200               42,995,227                    33,835,307                    
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Statement Of Value
Addition And Its Distribution 

WEALTH GENERATED

Gross Sales/ Revenues
Bought-in-material and services

WEALTH DISTRIBUTION

To Employees
Salaries, benefits and other costs

To Government
Income tax, sales tax, excise duty and others

To Society
Donation towards education, health and
environment

To Providers of Capital
Dividend to shareholders
Markup / Interest expenses on borrowed funds

To Company
Depreciation, amortization & retained profit

2022
PKR In '000'

%2023
PKR In '000'

%

 4,903,889 
 (3,402,825)

 1,501,064

 280,361 

 823,770 

 502 

 -   
 93,910 

 302,521
 

 1,501,064 
 

100.0%

18.7%

54.9%

0.0%

0.0%
6.2%

20.2%

100.0%

 
6,489,949 

 (4,042,944)

 2,447,005

 389,554 

 1,357,011 

 5,473 

 59,301 
 133,742 

 501,924
 

 2,447,005 
 

100.0%

15.9%

55.5%

0.2%

2.4%
5.5%

20.5%

100.0%

To Employees
15.9%

To
Government

55.5% 

To Society
0.2%

To Providers
of Capital

7.9% 

To Company
20.5%

WEALTH DISTRIBUTION -2023 (Percentage) WEALTH DISTRIBUTION -2022 (Percentage) 

To
Government

54.9% 

To Company
20.2%

To Providers
of Capital

6.2% 

To Society
0.0%

To Employees
18.7%



101  |  MACPAC Annual Report 2023

Share Price
Sensitivity Analysis 
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Data Source: Pakistan Stock Exchange 

Macpac Films Limited shares (MACFL) are traded on Pakistan Stock Exchanges. Our free 
float is 35% and market capitalization at the end of day of fiscal year was PKR 929.2 million. 
There are many factors, which might positively or adversely affect the share price of our 
Company, few of which are listed below.

Stock Market

The share price depends on overall market performance, investor confidence and the 
fundamentals of the economy. Positive sentiments and news flows prevailing in the market 
may result in an appreciation of the share price of the Company.

Commodity Prices

The Company’s performance is mainly dependent upon the availability of raw material and 
any fluctuation in major input price (raw material tariffs, power and overhead) can 
positively or negatively affect the margins and the EPS which in turn can drive the market 
share price upwards or downwards.

Regulations and Government Policies

The share price is also sensitive to any changes in policies by the government and 
regulatory authorities’, both specific to the packing sector and overall business activities 
may affect the market share price either positively or negatively, depending on whether the 
policy is in favor of or against the industry.

Exchange Rate

The volatility in currency exchange rates can also affect the market share price as the 
Company is involved in both export and import (exports of BOPP and import of raw 
materials). The margins can be affected positively or adversely.

Political Stability

The stable political situation in the Country improves the industry and investor confidence 
and also encourages foreigners to invest in local companies in the Country, which may 
have a positive impact on share price and vice versa.



102  |  MACPAC Annual Report 2023

Shareholder Information 
Registered Office

Plot# 21, Maqboolabad, Jinnah Cooperative
Housing Society (J.C.H.S) , Tipu Sultan Road,
Karachi
Tel: 021-34305811-13
Fax: 021-34305810

Email: info@macpacfilms.com
  

Shares Registrar

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99–B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S.,
Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400
Tel: Customer Support Services (Toll Free)
0800-CDCPL (23275)
Fax: (92-21) 34326034
Email: info@cdcpak.com
Website: www.cdcpakistan.com

Listing On Stock Exchanges

Shares of Macpac Films Limited are listed
on Pakistan Stock Exchange

Stock Code

The stock code for dealing in equity shares
of Macpac Films Limited at PSX is 'MACFL' 

Contact Info

Email: info@macpacfilms.com
Tel: +92-21-111-MFL-111
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Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2023
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Categories of Shareholders
As of June 30, 2023

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage

Government of Pakistan

EMPLOYEES OLD AGE BENEFITS INSTITUTION

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children

EHTESHAM MAQBOOL ELAHI

HABIB ELAHI

SHARIQ MAQBOOL

NAEEM ALI MOHAMMAD MUNSHI

NAJMUL HASSAN

MAQBOOL ELAHI SHAIKH

SHABBIR HAMZA KHANDWALA

HAFSA ABBASY

FAHAD MUNSHI

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

NIT & ICP

Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial

Financial Institutions.

Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

General Public

   a. Local

   b. Foreign

OTHERS

       Totals

1

3

2

3

1

1

1

1

1

1

-   

 -   

1

-

1

1175

23

14

1229

 4,666,000 

 

9,845,404 
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 9,103,783 

 133,900 

 89,212 
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 500 

 500 

 -   

 -   

 6,500 

 -   

 1,000,671 

 15,282,915 

 323,052 
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 7.87 
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 15.45 

 15.45 

 15.35 

 0.23 

 0.15 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 -   

 -   

 0.01 

 -   

 1.69 

 25.77 

 0.54 

 0.88 

 100.00 

EHTESHAM MAQBOOL ELAHI

HABIB ELAHI

SHARIQ MAQBOOL

NAEEM ALI MOHAMMAD MUNSHI

 9,845,404 

 9,163,462 

 9,163,375 

 9,103,783 

 16.60 

 15.45 

 15.45 

 15.35 
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